
  
 

APOPKA CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
May 04, 2016 1:30 PM 

APOPKA CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
INVOCATION - Reverend Laura Viau of First Presbyterian Church of Apopka  
PLEDGE 
 

Please submit a “Notice of Intent to Speak card” to the City Clerk.  Action may not be taken by the Council at this meeting but questions 

may be answered by staff or issues may be referred for appropriate staff action.  If further action is necessary, the item may be placed 

on the agenda for further review and consideration.  NOTE:  Zoning or code enforcement matters which may be coming before the 

Board at a later date should not be discussed until such time as they come before the Board in a public hearing.  

Pursuant to F.S. 286.0114, members of the public shall be given a reasonable opportunity to be heard on propositions before the City 

Council.  Accordingly, comments, questions, and concerns regarding items listed on this agenda shall be received at the time the City 

Council addresses such items during this meeting.  Public comments are generally limited to four minutes. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
1. City Council meeting April 20, 2016. 

 
PUBLIC/STAFF RECOGNITION AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
Proclamations: 

1. Teacher Appreciation Week Proclamation  Mayor Kilsheimer 
2. National Bike to School Day Proclamation presented to Principal Gary Schadow Mayor Kilsheimer 
3. National Police Week Proclamation presented to Chief Michael McKinley Mayor Kilsheimer 

 
Employee Recognition: 

 Five Year Service Award – Juan Montealegre – Public Services/Street Maintenance 
 Five Year Service Award – Mark Creaser – Police Department/Field Services 
 Fifteen Year Service Award – Aubry Stephens – Public Services/Utility Construction 
 Fifteen Year Service Award – Victor Barger, III – Police Department/Support Services 
 Twenty Five Year Service Award – Shari Major – Police Department/Support Services 

 
Presentations: 

1. 2016 Legislative Session Update Senator Geraldine F. Thompson 
2. Presentation on Recreation Program & Rental Fees. David Burgoon 
3. Splash Pad Update Glenn A. Irby 

 
CONSENT (Action Item) 

1. Authorization to engage in negotiations with an Architectural & Engineering Firm to provide design plans for a new Fire Station. 
2. Authorize the Vehicle for Hire Permit Application for T-Max Transportation Services, LLC – Maxo Angervil 
3. Authorize the Vehicle for Hire Permit Application for U-First Transportation – Ronald Joseph 
4. Authorize the Capital Facility Fees Payment Agreement for Ambergate Townhomes. 
5. Authorize the Orange County Supervisor of Elections to use the Northwest Recreation Complex as a polling location. 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS/ORDINANCES/RESOLUTION (Action Item) 

1. Ordinance 2493 – Second Reading – Change of Zoning - Quasi-Judicial David Moon 
2. Ordinance 2494 – Second Reading – Annexation David Moon 
3. Ordinance 2495 – Second Reading – Annexation David Moon 

 
BUSINESS (Action Item) 

1. Final Development Plan/Plat – Silver Oak Subdivision- Quasi-Judicial David Moon 
2. Council  
3. Public 

 
 
 

1



  
 

MAYOR’S REPORT 
1. Approve the appointment of Kerry Luellen to the Police Officers' Retirement System Board of Trustees. 
2. Approve the appointment of Randall G. West to the Police Officers' Retirement System Board of Trustees. 
3. Approve the reappointment of Todd Bengston to the Firefighters' Retirement System Board of Trustees. 
4. Approve the reappointment of Mayor Kilsheimer to the Firefighters' Retirement System Board of Trustees. 

 
NOT REQUIRING ACTION 

1. Thank you letter to the City of Apopka from the Harbor House of Central Florida. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
 

MEETINGS AND UPCOMING EVENTS 

DATE TIME EVENT 

May 5, 2016  5:30pm – 9:00pm  Food Truck Round Up – Kit Land Nelson Park  

May 7, 2016  12:00pm – 9:00pm  Cinco de Mayo Event – Northwest Recreation Complex  

May 10, 2016  5:30pm – 6:00pm  Planning Commission Meeting  

May 18, 2016  7:00pm –  City Council Meeting  

June 1, 2016 1:30pm - City Council Meeting 

June 2, 2016 5:30pm – 9:00pm Food Truck Round Up 

June 14, 2016 5:30pm – 6:00pm Planning Commission Meeting 

June 15, 2016 7:00pm –  Council Meeting 

 
Individuals with disabilities needing assistance to participate in any of these proceedings should contact the City Clerk at least two (2) working days in 
advance of the meeting date and time at (407) 703-1704.  F.S. 286.0105 If a person decides to appeal any decision or recommendation made by 
Council with respect to any matter considered at this meeting, he will need record of the proceedings, and that for such purposes he may need to ensure 
that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. 
 
Any opening invocation that is offered before the official start of the Council meeting shall be the voluntary offering of a private person, to and for the 
benefit of the Council.  The views or beliefs expressed by the invocation speaker have not been previously reviewed or approved by the City Council or 
the city staff, and the City is not allowed by law to endorse the religious or non-religious beliefs or views of such speaker.  Persons in attendance at the 
City Council meeting are invited to stand during the opening ceremony. However, such invitation shall not be construed as a demand, order, or any other 
type of command.  No person in attendance at the meeting shall be required to participate in any opening invocation that is offered or to participate in the 
Pledge of Allegiance.  You may remain seated within the City Council Chambers or exit the City Council Chambers and return upon completion of the 
opening invocation and/or Pledge of Allegiance if you do not wish to participate in or witness the opening invocation and/or the recitation of the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 
  

2



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. City Council meeting April 20, 2016. 
  

3



CITY OF APOPKA 

 

Minutes of the regular City Council meeting held on April 20, 2016, at 7:00 p.m., in the City 

of Apopka Council Chambers. 
 

PRESENT:   Mayor Joe Kilsheimer 

Commissioner Bill Arrowsmith 

Commissioner Billie Dean 

Commissioner Diane Velazquez 

Commissioner Sam Ruth 

City Attorney Cliff Shepard 

City Administrator Glenn Irby 

 

PRESS PRESENT:   John Peery - The Apopka Chief 

    Bethany Rodgers, Orlando Sentinel 

 

INVOCATION:  Mayor Kilsheimer introduced Pastor Jason Henderson of Grace Pointe Church, 

who gave the invocation. 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Mayor Kilsheimer said on April 18, 1775, Paul Revere and 

William Dawes set off on their historic ride to warn patriot leaders in Concord that British troops 

had been dispatched to seize their arms. They rode through the countryside to Boston and rallied 

the minutemen to take up arms and fight against the British with the cry “The British are coming.” 

Part of the long rehearsed plan was to place lanterns in the steeple of Boston’s Old North Church 

to alert the minutemen of British troop movement, “One if by land, two if by sea.”  On that 

evening, Paul Revere placed two lanterns in the steeple and the militia met the British troops at 

Concord at about 5:00 a.m. on April 19. In that confrontation, the “shot heard around the world” 

was fired and the brief Battle of Lexington began the American Revolution. He asked everyone to 

reflect upon the vigilance and gallantry of the American Patriots as he led in the Pledge of 

Allegiance.  

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

1. City Council Regular meeting April 6, 2016. 

MOTION by Commissioner Dean, and seconded by Commissioner Ruth, to approve the 

April 6, 2016 City Council minutes. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor 

Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

 

PUBLIC/STAFF RECOGNITION AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

 

Presentation: 

1. Check Presentation to Boy Scout Troop 211 for Parking at Old Florida Outdoor Festival 

A presentation of a check in the amount of $3,222.29 was presented to Boy Scout Troop 211 

for parking cars at the Old Florida Outdoor Festival. 

 

2. Update on Apopka Begins and Ends with “A” Program 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer recognized Gerry Glynn with City of Life Foundation, and stated he has 

been serving as our chief facilitator for discussions at both Lovell Elementary School and Rock 
4



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on April 20, 2016 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 2 

 

Springs Elementary School. He acknowledged John Wright, Area Superintendent for the North 

Learning Community; Oscar Aguirre, Principal of Lovell Elementary School; Brian Burns, 

Principal of Rock Springs Elementary School; Christine Moore, School Board Member; and 

Bryan Nelson, Orange County Commissioner. 

 

Gerry Glynn, City of Life Foundation, provided an update on Apopka Begins and Ends with 

“A”.  He said he has been honored to play the role of facilitator for this program, stating this 

has been an effort to bring the community and the schools together to help lift the schools up. 

He affirmed there have been several members from the community who have participated in 

this effort bringing the resources of the community and schools together. He said this is not just 

improving the schools and the students’ performance, but it is also raising the public and 

citizens perception of Apopka schools through a strong partnership. The focus is to achieve an 

“A” rating for the schools. However, it is not just about the technical part of what the grades 

mean about the schools, but how the community can help the schools. A copy of his 

presentation is on file in the Clerk’s office. 

 

John Wright, Orange County Public Schools Area Superintendent of the North Learning 

Community, said Orange County serves almost 200,000 students. He thanked the City for their 

interest and said understanding public education is not easy, it takes all working together to 

make a vision reality. He said it was very impressive how Apopka and this whole community 

embraces and supports the schools. He stated this is not about the “A”, but about the students 

and he hopes this program expands to all Apopka schools. 

 

Oscar Aguirre, Principal of Lovell Elementary School, said he was very excited about this 

project and having the community work together to serve the students. He stated this will 

eventually contribute to the businesses in the area as successful students become citizens in the 

Apopka area. He said this project is about building the child as a whole in all areas that they 

need support. 

 

Brian Burns, Principal of Rock Springs Elementary School, said Apopka is a very special town 

to be a part of and he has been honored being the principal of Rock Springs Elementary School. 

He declared what is great about the community action team is that they move beyond the 

incentives of reading a book or being on the honor roll. This is getting people in the schools 

and working with the students, connecting with them and helping with learning. He thanked all 

of the volunteers who come in and work with the students.  

 

In response to Commissioner Dean inquiring what can be done to get top teachers in the low 

performing schools, Dr. Wright advised there are incentives offered for teachers that go to 

struggling schools.  In addition, Principal Aguirre said the good news is that Lovell Elementary 

has very strong teachers, however, now they are going through professional development for 

those teachers, as they do not understand how to teach poverty stricken children. He stated 

these children learn differently from what they are used to and struggle, so his job through the 

district is to teach and prepare their teachers so they can meet the demands of these students. 

 

CONSENT (Action Item) 

1. Approve the Disbursement Report for the month of March, 2016. 

2. Approve the appointment of Roger Simpson to the Planning Commission. 

3. Approve the purchase of body worn cameras. 
5



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on April 20, 2016 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 3 

 

4. Authorize a scoreboard & windscreen sponsorship from Modern Orthodontics. 

5. Authorize Public Services to reallocate funds in the 2015-2016 approved budget. 

6. Award a contract for Domestic Wastewater Residuals Transport to Shelley’s Environmental 

Systems. 

7. Award contracts to PRMG for a Police, Fire/EMS, and Parks & Recreation Impact Fee Studies. 

8. Authorization to engage in negotiations for a Construction Manager at Risk for the Water 

Reclamation Facility Expansion. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Ruth, and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez, to approve 

the eight items on the Consent Agenda. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor 

Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS/ORDINANCES/RESOLUTION (Action Item) 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer said the first seven ordinances were Administrative Rezoning and quasi-

judicial.  Witnesses were sworn in by the clerk for these ordinances. 

 

1. Ordinance No. 2476 – Second Reading – 2016-1 Administrative Rezoning.  The City Clerk 

read the title as follows: 

ORDINANCE NO. 2476 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING THE ZONING FROM “COUNTY” 

A-1 (AGRICULTURE) TO “CITY” AG (AGRICULTURE) FOR 

CERTAIN REAL PROPERTIES GENERALLY LOCATED WITHIN 

THE CITY LIMITS OF APOPKA, COMPRISING 6.14 ACRES, MORE 

OR LESS, AND OWNED BY DONALD S. & KATHLEEN V. 

SMITHERS; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Arrowsmith, and seconded by Commissioner Dean, to adopt 

Ordinance No. 2476. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

 

2. Ordinance No. 2477 – Second Reading – 2016-1 Administrative Rezoning.  The City Clerk 

read the title as follows: 

ORDINANCE NO. 2477 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING 

THE ZONING FROM “COUNTY” A-1 AND A-2 (ZIP) TO “CITY” AG 

(AGRICULTURE) FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTIES GENERALLY 

LOCATED WITHIN THE CITY LIMITS OF APOPKA, COMPRISING 
6



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on April 20, 2016 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 4 

 

13.32 ACRES, MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY ROBERT AND 

JOYCE AYERS; JAMES AND PAMELIA WRIGHT; AND MICHAEL 

AND MELESSA HANDY; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, 

CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Ruth, and seconded by Commissioner Dean, to adopt 

Ordinance No. 2477. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

 

3. Ordinance No. 2478 – Second Reading – 2016-1 Administrative Rezoning.  The City Clerk 

read the title as follows: 

ORDINANCE NO. 2478 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING 

THE ZONING FROM “COUNTY” C-1 (ZIP) AND A-1 (ZIP) TO “CITY” 

PO/I (PROFESSIONAL OFFICE/INSTITUTION) FOR CERTAIN REAL 

PROPERTIES GENERALLY LOCATED WITHIN THE CITY LIMITS 

OF APOPKA, COMPRISING 19.35 ACRES, MORE OR LESS, AND 

OWNED BY TRINITY BAPTIST CHURCH OF APOPKA; PROVIDING 

FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE 

DATE. 
 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing. 
 

MOTION by Commissioner Arrowsmith, and seconded by Commissioner Dean, to adopt 

Ordinance No. 2478. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

 

4. Ordinance No. 2479 – Second Reading – 2016-1 Administrative Rezoning.  The City Clerk 

read the title as follows: 

ORDINANCE NO. 2479 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING 

THE ZONING FROM “COUNTY” C-3 (ZIP) TO “CITY” C-1 (RETAIL 

COMMERCIAL) FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTIES GENERALLY 

LOCATED WITHIN THE CITY LIMITS OF APOPKA, COMPRISING 

3.32 ACRES, MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY NORMAN E. 

SAWYER; AND IGLESIA EL GETSEMANI, INC.; PROVIDING FOR 

DIRECTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, 

SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

7



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on April 20, 2016 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 5 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Velazquez, and seconded by Commissioner Dean, to adopt 

Ordinance No. 2479. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

 

5. Ordinance No. 2480 – Second Reading – 2016-1 Administrative Rezoning.  The City Clerk 

read the title as follows: 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2480 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING 

THE ZONING FROM “COUNTY” C-1 (ZIP) TO “CITY” C-2 

(GENERAL COMMERCIAL) FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTIES 

GENERALLY LOCATED WITHIN THE CITY LIMITS OF APOPKA, 

COMPRISING 3.2 ACRES, MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY 7-

ELEVEN, INC.; ACTION GATOR TIRE; AND RACETRAC 

PETROLEUM, INC.; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, 

CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Arrowsmith, and seconded by Commissioner Ruth, to adopt 

Ordinance No. 2480. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

 

6. Ordinance No. 2481 – Second Reading – 2016-1 Administrative Rezoning.  The City Clerk 

read the title as follows: 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2481 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING 

THE ZONING FROM “COUNTY” I-2 (ZIP) AND I-4 (ZIP) TO “CITY” 

I-1 (GENERAL COMMERCIAL) FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTIES 

GENERALLY LOCATED WITHIN THE CITY LIMITS OF APOPKA, 

COMPRISING 10.54 ACRES, MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY 

DAVID L. POTOPAS; MARILYN BOUGHAN TRUST; PATRICIA & 

IRVIN LEADERS TRUST; AND LTR PROPERTIES, INC.; PROVIDING 

FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE 

DATE. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing. 

 
8



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on April 20, 2016 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 6 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Dean, and seconded by Commissioner Arrowsmith, to adopt 

Ordinance No. 2481. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

 

7. Ordinance No. 2482 – Second Reading – 2016-1 Administrative Rezoning.  The City Clerk 

read the title as follows: 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2482 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING 

THE ZONING FROM “COUNTY” R-1 (ZIP) TO “CITY” R-1 

(RESIDENTIAL) FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTIES GENERALLY 

LOCATED WITHIN THE CITY LIMITS OF APOPKA, COMPRISING 

3.16 ACRES, MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY BRIAN AND 

CHRISTIAN ANDERSON; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, 

CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Ruth, and seconded by Commissioner Arrowsmith, to adopt 

Ordinance No. 2482. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

 

8. Ordinance No. 2492 – Second Reading – Amending the Apopka Land Development Code and 

update the Utilities Design and Construction Standards Manual.  The City Clerk read the title 

as follows: 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2492 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

APOPKA, FLORIDA, UPDATE OF THE UTILITIES DESIGN AND 

CONSTRUCTION STANDARDS MANUAL, PROVIDING FOR 

SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Ruth, and seconded by Commissioner Dean to adopt 

Ordinance No. 2492. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

 

9. Ordinance 2493 – First Reading – Change of Zoning.  The City Clerk read the title as follows: 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2493 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING 

THE ZONING FROM “COUNTY” IND-2 (ZIP) AND IND-3 (ZIP) TO 

9



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on April 20, 2016 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 7 

 

“CITY” I-1 (RESTRICTED INDUSTRIAL) FOR CERTAIN REAL 

PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED SOUTH OF EAST 13TH STREET, 

WEST OF SHEELER AVENUE, COMPRISING 17.49 ACRES MORE 

OR LESS, AND OWNED BY LITTLE BROWNIE PROPERTIES, INC.; 

PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

David Moon, Planning Manager, gave a brief lead-in on this property. He advised the property 

is presently assigned a future land use designation of Industrial, but has not received a city 

zoning category. The property owner is requesting an I-1 Industrial zoning category. The 

Planning Commission at their March 8, 2016 meeting recommended approval and found the 

zoning to be consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code.  

 

Affected parties were sworn in by the City Clerk. 

 

Peter Wood, President of Little Brownie Properties, said they were seeking this rezoning as 

they are currently located in the HUB zone and are seeking a City zoning classification for any 

future operations on the property.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Arrowsmith and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez, to 

approve Ordinance No. 2493 at First Reading and hold it over for a Second Reading. 

Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Arrowsmith, 

Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

 

10. Ordinance 2494 – First Reading - Annexation.  The City Clerk read the title as follows: 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2494 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO 

EXTEND ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX 

PURSUANT TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HERINAFTER 

DESCRIBED LANDS SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, 

FLORIDA, OWNED BY SBKP, LLC LOCATED AT 312 OLD DIXIE 

HIGHWAY; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, 

SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Ruth, and seconded by Commissioner Arrowsmith, to 

approve Ordinance No. 2494 at First Reading and hold it over for a Second Reading. 

Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Arrowsmith, 

Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

 

10



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on April 20, 2016 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 8 

 

11. Ordinance 2495 – First Reading - Annexation.  The City Clerk read the title as follows: 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2495 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO 

EXTEND ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX 

PURSUANT TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HERINAFTER 

DESCRIBED LANDS SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, 

FLORIDA, OWNED BY JACK V. CRAVEY AND JOYCE A. CRAVEY 

LOCATED AT 3815 PHILS LANE AND 3827 HIDEAWAY ROAD; 

PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, 

SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Dean, and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez, to 

approve Ordinance No. 2495 at First Reading and carry it over for a Second Reading. 

Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Arrowsmith, 

Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

 

BUSINESS  

1. Ratify the Certificate of Official Election Results. 

City Clerk Goff said the Canvassing Board, consisting of Commissioner Dean, Commissioner 

Velazquez, and herself, met on April 12, 2016, at 4:00 p.m. at the Orange County Supervisor 

of Elections, 119 Kaley Street, Orlando, to canvass absentee ballots. She stated 36 absentee 

ballots were rejected due to various reasons. The Board reconvened at 7:00 p.m. to complete 

canvassing as the precinct results came in. The Canvassing Board met again on April 14, 

2016, to conduct the manual audit and certify the official election results. She advised that 

Chapter 34 of the City Code of Ordinances requires that Council ratify the signed certificate 

of elections results. The Canvassing Board requests Council ratify the official election results 

as submitted.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Arrowsmith, and seconded by Commissioner Ruth to ratify 

the Certificate of Official Election Results as submitted. Motion carried unanimously 

with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth 

voting aye. 

 

2. Council 

 

Glenn Irby, City Administrator, reported the City met today with Aero-Tel and the grant 

writer for CDBG grants. He advised there is an economic development grant that is available 

to business. The catalyst to that grant has to be the government applying for the grant up to 

$1.5 million. He advised this grant is to create incentive for business to get up and running.  

Aero-Tel was provided the packet of information to complete and return to the City so it can 

be looked into further.  He also discussed looking into a property trade and Aero-Tel’s 

property came in at a much higher value. He advised there is a possibility of carving out a 

piece of property that Aero-Tel owns to still consider the possibility of a property trade.  

11



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on April 20, 2016 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 9 

 

 

Commissioner Arrowsmith suggested the value of the City’s property should have an added 

value due to the fact of it being in the HUB zone.  

 

Commissioner Dean stated he had been approached by a citizen regarding the need of lighting 

on Old Dixie Highway and asked that this be considered. 

 

Mr. Irby advised Duke Energy has been asked for a lighting inventory for the entire city.  

 

3. Public 

 

Joan Whalen & Susan O’Keefe both spoke and expressed concerns regarding the use of sports 

fields for lacrosse. Both of their sons play lacrosse and they are having difficulty obtaining 

fields in Apopka, with their teams having to play home games at fields in other cities. Ms. 

O’Keefe said they pay to play and practice on the fields and understand they are not a 

recreation league, however, there are fields that are not being used and asked that these fields 

be considered for their use.  

 

Ray Shackelford applauded the service and commitment of Commissioner Arrowsmith and 

Commissioner Ruth and the support of their families. He inquired as to the status of a splash 

pad for our young people and families.  

 

Mr. Irby advised research was being conducted and information being gathered on splash pads 

in order to move this forward. He stated more information will be presented at a meeting in 

the future.  

 

Dr. Shackelford said he was former educator and served as the former chair of a school 

advisory council. He asked what the cost would be to Apopka to expand the program of 

Apopka Begins and Ends with “A” to the other schools. He further inquired what the 

relationship was to the school improvement plan, as well as what was the interaction with the 

school advisory council and the PTA.  He requested consideration be given to these matters. 

 

Isadora Dean thanked the City for the report on Apopka Begins and Ends with “A”. She stated 

she wished we would focus on the whole child and said Apopka has always been very 

supportive of our schools. She said she wanted to see us help all schools and stated the City 

has Title One schools which receive more money.  She thanked Commissioners Arrowsmith 

and Ruth for their service and said she hoped they would continue to be involved. 

 

MAYOR’S REPORT 
 

Mayor Kilsheimer expressed condolences from the City of Apopka to Commissioner Dean and his 

family on the passing of his brother this past weekend.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer reminded everyone the Swearing-In Ceremony for Commissioner-elect Doug 

Bankson and Commissioner-elect Kyle Becker will be held Tuesday, April 26, 2016, 12:00 p.m. at 

the Apopka Community Center.  

 

 
12



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on April 20, 2016 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 10 

 

Commissioner Arrowsmith thanked the community for their confidence and trust in his 

representing the whole community during his long career. He said he has been fortunate to serve 

with a man of highest integrity in Mayor John Land and also many fellow commissioners making 

up great teams over the years. He stated it was rewarding to see cranes working on the new 

hospital to the south and heavy equipment carving a path to the north for the extension of 429, 

continued expansion of industrial parks, and new residential developments. He said these teams 

have formed the foundation of the future for this City. He expressed disappointment in the lack of 

interest from the voters, but thanked those who did come out and participate in the run-off election. 

He thanked everyone who helped in his campaign, and in particular thanked Reide Wilson who is 

working on becoming an Eagle Scout for picking up over 300 of his campaign signs the night of 

the election. He said it was not unexpected that this administration supported his opponent. He 

thanked his family for their involvement and support over the past months. He stated many have 

said they are in their prayers and for that they remain forever grateful.  

 

Commissioner Ruth said outside of his wife and his family, which is the greatest thing he has ever 

accomplished, working here he has had the privilege of washing the windows in this building to 

sitting in the seat on the dais. He declared every time he sat in this seat it was a privilege, stating 

this seat does not belong to him, it belongs to the public. He affirmed that every time he sat at the 

dais he took pride in being here. He affirmed to dispel any rumors, no one ever told him how to 

vote while sitting in this seat. He said there is not a book that tells you how to be a commissioner 

and after he was elected he found out that he did not know everything about being a commissioner. 

He stated he was one of Apopka’s biggest cheerleaders, always will be, and will champion anyone 

who wants to move Apopka in a direction that he favors. He spoke of his coaching experience and 

said it was not the wins, but the losses that he acquired the most out of and was humbled by them. 

He stated while he was not the people’s first choice, Apopka was always his choice. 

 

 

ADJOURNMENT – There being no further business the meeting adjourned at 8:17 p.m. 
 

 

 

___________________________ 

        Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

__________________________ 

Linda F. Goff, City Clerk 

 

13



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

2. Presentation on Recreation Program & Rental Fees.  David Burgoon 
 

  

14



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

___ CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: May 4, 2016 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:             Recreation 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:      Proposal 

  X  OTHER: Presentation 
  

 

SUBJECT: RECREATION PROGRAM & RENTAL FEE’S 

 

REQUEST: APPROVAL OF ALL RECREATION PROGRAM & RENTAL FEE’S 
  
SUMMARY: 

 

The City of Apopka Code of Ordinances (Chapter 58: Parks & Recreation, Section 58-2, Rates and Charges) 

states in part the rates and charges for the use of recreation facilities and recreation programs shall be 

developed by city staff and said rates and charges shall be reviewed annually. To ensure rates and charges 

are reasonably related to the city's actual costs and are consistent with prevailing market rates. 

 

In accordance with the Code of Ordinances, staff has reviewed the current fee schedule and researched the 

surrounding area to identify any adjustments that may be needed.  As a result of this research the attached 

proposal presents a fee increase to the most frequent users of the facilities and establishes fees not currently 

in existence. The increase would align with current market rates and would also cover expenses associated 

with upkeep and maintenance. The attached proposal includes the current fee schedule and any 

recommended changes are indicated in the “proposed fee” column.   

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

N/A    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Approve the proposed recreation program and rental fees.  
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

15



 Resident
 Non 

Resident

Non-

Profit
 Resident 

Non 

Resident 
Non-Profit

RECREATION - Department Wide

Tennis Before 5:00 pm $4.00 $4.00 $3.00 $4.00

Tennis After 5:00 pm $6.00 $6.00 $5.00 $6.00

Tennis Permit 1 month membership $20.00 $25.00

Tennis Permit 6 month membership $130.00 $100.00 $125.00

Tennis Permit (1year membership $195.00 $235.00

City Employee Discount 20% 50% Increased Discount

Youth Sports Coaching Discount off Registration 50% New Discount

Scholarship 50% / 75% New

Cancellation Fee $10.00 25%

NORTHWEST RECREATION COMPLEX

Soccer $80.00 $120.00 $110.00 $140.00

Soccer Application Fee $10.00 $10.00

Soccer Uniform Fee $20.00 $20.00

3 vs 3 Summer Soccer $60.00 $90.00 $75.00

Flag Football League (NW) $100.00 $140.00 $120.00

Teen Volleyball $60.00 $85.00 $75.00

Adult Kickball (Per team) $250.00

Adult Softball  (Per Team) $405.00

Field Rental Before 5:00 pm (Per Hour) $15.00

Field Rental After 5:00 pm and weekends (Per Hour) $20.00

Field Rental w/ 70% Apopka residents (Per Hour) $15.00

Light Fee (Per Hour) $10.00

Volleyball Court Rental (Per Hour) $15.00

Volleyball Lights (Per Hour) $10.00

SPORTS LEAGUES - NON CITY

Football Field with Press Box/ Scoreboard/Field Paint 

(No Logo) (Per Day) (Games for Pop Warner, AAU, 

Etc..)

$500.00

Pop Warner (Practice Fields & Building) (Per Season) $3,000.00

Logo  Painted (Per Logo) $200.00

Endzones Painted $500.00

Light Fee (Per Hour) $10.00

Little League Baseball (Per team / per season) $100.00

SPECIAL EVENTS/ TOURNAMENTS

Field Prep Fee (BB/Softball) Per field $15.00

Field Prep (Modified) Fee per field $20.00 $30.00

Field Prep Fee - Soccer per field $40.00 $45.00

Field Prep Fee - Lacrosse per field $40.00 $60.00

Tournament Fees (Until 7:00pm) per field $150.00

Tournament Fees (After 7:00pm) per additional field 

(Per Hour)
$20.00

Grounds crew during tournament (Per Hour) $20.00

Tournament Deposit $250.00

Light Fee (Per Hour) $10.00

EMS (Per Hour) $100.00

Extra Ranger (Per Hour) $25.00

Special Event permit $25.00

Off Duty Officer (Per Hour) $30.00

Dumpster Fee (Per Hour) $130.00

Vendor Fee Per Day $50.00

5K Race in advance registration $15.00 $25.00 $35.00 Increased to cover cost

5K Race Day $20.00 $30.00 $40.00

5K Race youth $10.00 $15.00 New Fee

WILLIAMS PARK

Summer Camp (Apopka area school) (Per Week) Free $25.00

Summer Camp (Field trip fees) (Per Week) $15.00

Summer Camp  Application fee per family $10.00

Summer Camp (T-Shirt fee) $10.00

After School Care (Per Month) $25.00

Flag Football League $60.00 $95.00 $75.00

Combined all soccer 

fees into one

Justification

ALL Non-Resident 

Rates = 20% higher 

than Resident 

Current Fee's Proposed Fee's

Recreation Department Fees

Combined all fees & 

added a 2nd field trip

16



 Resident
 Non 

Resident

Non-

Profit
 Resident 

Non 

Resident 
Non-Profit

Justification

FRAN CARLTON CENTER

Dance For Fun $100.00 $140.00 $120.00

Summer Camp Fran Carlton (per week fee) $85.00 $127.50 $110.00 $140.00

Summer Camp Fran Carlton application fee $10.00

Summer Camp Fran Carlton T-shirt $10.00

Summer Camp Fran Carlton field trip fee per week $15.00

Winter Camp Fran Carlton (Per Day) $20.00 $30.00 $25.00

Spring Camp Weekly rate $85.00 $127.50 $110.00 $140.00

Spring Camp (Field trip fees) (Per Week) $15.00

Spring Camp  Application fee per family $10.00

Senior Programs Single $9.00

Senior Program Family $13.50

Racquetball (Before 5:00pm per hour) $4.00 $3.00 $4.00

Racquetball (After 5:00pm per hour) $6.00 $5.00 $6.00

Racquetball 1 month membership $20.00 $25.00

Racquetball   6 month membership $130.00 $100.00 $125.00

Racquetball 1year membership $195.00 $235.00

Senior Luncheon (Must bring covered dish $1.00

Senior Day Trip per person $6.00

Fran Carlton Facility rental (Per Hour) $60.00 $90.00 $45R / $67N $75.00 $55.00

Fran Carlton Facility rental (refundable deposit) $200.00

FACILITY RENTALS

Small Pavilion Rental (4Hour block) $30.00 $45.00 $40.00 $25.00

Medium Pavilion (4Hour block) $60.00 $90.00 $75.00 $50.00

Large Pavilion  (4 Hour block) $75.00 $112.00 $90.00 $65.00

Apopka Community Center $65.00 $95.00 $55.00

Fran Carlton Center - Full Building $60.00 $90.00 $45.00 $65.00 $95.00 $55.00

Fran Carlton Center - Half Building $45.00 $65.00 $35.00

Alonzo Williams $30.00 $40.00 $25.00

Amphitheater 2,500.00$ 1,600.00$ 

 Combined all fee & 

added a 2nd field trip

Non-Profit rate = 

Resident rate -15% 

round to nearest $5

 Combined all fee & 

added a 2nd field trip

17



1

RECREATION PROGRAM & RENTAL FEES

18



2

NORTHWEST RECREATION COMPLEX
The Northwest Recreation Complex is located at 3710 Jason Dwelley Parkway. The complex has 

over 180 acres of land including: 8 full sized soccer fields, 2 modified soccer fields, 2 multi-

purpose fields, 3 Football practice fields, 1 stadium football field, 7 baseball fields, 5 softball 

fields, 4 tennis courts, 3 basketball courts, 4 sand volleyball courts and 5 pavilions along with a .9 

mile walking trail.

These facilities are available for rent on an hourly or daily basis for tournaments or special 

events.

Currently the complex hosts approximately 65 sports tournaments per year.

About the Park

19



3

THEY CALL NORTHWEST HOME

The Northwest Recreation Complex is home to 
the Apopka Little League and Apopka Pop 
Warner programs along with city run programs 
such as youth soccer, flag football and adult 
softball & kickball. The complex is also used as 
the home for several organized teams and 
leagues for practices and games along with fields 
available for pick-up games to the general public.Pop Warner Football Fields & 

Little League Baseball Fields
20



4

OUTSIDE 
ORGANIZATIONS 

ANNUALREVENUE

Soccer Lacrosse Baseball
Apopka High Girls Soccer

$435

Apopka High school Lacrosse

$2,470

Orlando Baseball Academy

$305

Lake County Soccer Club

$1,235

Apopka Lacrosse Club

$2,250

First Strike 11U

$415

Alex Wellman

$1,295
CF Lions

$575

Triple Threat Soccer Club

$1,500
Longhorns

$640

Apopka FC Soccer Club

$2,820

First Strike 10U

$710

FC America Soccer Club

$5,535

Apopka Lightning 11U

$720

Guillermo Serrano Soccer League 

$14,610

First Strike 9U

$770

Apopka Sharks 9U

$890

Apopka Lightning 14U

$1,090

Apopka Lightning 9U

$1,200

Running Rebels

$10,000 21



5

Apopka Little League has 2 seasons (Spring and Fall)

Each season lasts approximately 12 weeks.

League uses 6 Fields (I,J,K,L,H & F)

Other fields are also used for practices depending on availability.

Field prep includes dragging, dugouts, filling holes, mound repair & chalking.

Weekly care of the fields include painting foul lines & bases as well as edging, mowing, weeding, watering,

infield care, changing out bases and additional care to bullpens and batting cages.

League uses the building as their home office. 22



6

LITTLE LEAGUE BASEBALL

Maintenance Cost Rate Cost Total

Little League Building & Concession Electric costs
$4500 $4,500

Bases & Home Plates Once a Year Per Field 
6 Fields $600 per Field  $3,600

Paint Foul Lines - 12 weeks x 2 Seasons x 3 pales Per week
72 Pales $44 per Pail $3,168

Chalk - Per Week 12 Bags x 12 weeks x 2 Seasons 
288 Bags $5 per Bag $1,440

Clay - 1 Load Per Field x 6 fields x 2 season 
12 Loads $525 per Load $6,300

Conditioner - 40 bags Per Field x 6 fields Per Season x 2
480 Bags $8 per Bag $3,840

Warning Track - Orange Coquina Shell 4 Loads Per Year 
4 Loads $900 per Load $3,600

Irrigation Supplies - Per Season
2 Times $500 $1,000

Fertilizer, Herbicide, Insect, Disease Control
6.5 Acres $200 Acre $1,300

Field Maintenance Costs Total
$28,748

Annual Field Maintenance Costs

23



7

LITTLE LEAGUE BASEBALL

Field Care - Labor Costs Hours
Avg. Rate per 

hr.
Cost Per

Mowing - 2 times A Week - 12 hr x 24 weeks 288 $15 $4,320

Spinning Fields  Daily - 22 hr. Per Week x 24 weeks 528 $15 $7,920

Chalking - 10 hr Per WeeK x 24 weeks 240 $15 $3,600

Foul Lines - 3 hr Per Week x 24 weeks 72 $15 $1,080

Slicing Twice Per Season 12 $15 $   180

Coring & Vacuuming 24 $15 $   360

Clay & Warning Track 240 $15 $3,600

Irrigation Repairs 60 $15 $   900

Edging, Weeding, Details  8 hours Per Week x 24 weeks 192 $15 $2,880

Labor Costs $24,248

Field Maintenance Costs $28,748

Total $52,996

Annual Labor Costs

24



8

Apopka Pop Warner football season is from August - November

Each season lasts approximately 16–18 weeks depending on playoff berths.

League uses Pads 13,14 & 15 which are designated for practice and Pad 16 which is for games.

.

League uses the garage for storing equipment and uniforms.

League also uses the building for concessions and office space.

Weekly care of the fields include painting lines and team logo as well as edging, weeding, mowing and watering.

25



9

POP WARNER FOOTBALL

Actual Cost Rate Cost Total

Pop Warner Building / Concession Electric Per budget $    4,000

Football Field Lights/ Electric Per budget $    2,000 

Paint  Practice Fields - 1 pail (White paint) per field x 3 fields x 12 weeks 36 pales $44 $    1,584 

Paint Game Field - 4 pails (white paint) x 6 games 24 pales $44 $    1,056 

Paint Game Field - 1 pail (Blue paint) x 6 weeks 6 pales $48 $       288 

Paint Logo - 1 pail White paint & 1 pail of Blue paint x  3 a season 6 pales $46 $       276

Replace sod 6 pallets $120 $       720

Top Dressing $    2,500

Fertilizer, Herbicide, Insect, Disease Control $       850 

Field Maintenance Costs Total $ 13,274

Annual Field Maintenance Costs

26



10

POP WARNER FOOTBALL

Field Care - Labor Cost Hours Avg Rate per hr. Cost Per

Mowing Practice Fields (3) - 2 times A Week x 2 hrs x 12 weeks 48 $ 15 $       720 

Mowing game Field  - 2 times A Week x 1 hrs x 12 weeks 24 $ 15 $       360 

Weeding game Field  - 1 hrs x 12 weeks 12 $ 15 $       180 

Paint  Practice Fields - 4 hrs wk x 12 weeks 48 $ 15 $    720 

Paint  Game Fields - 2 hrs wk x 6 weeks 12 $ 15 $       180 

Game Field Set-up - Beginning of season 8 hrs x 3 staff 24 $ 15 $       360 

Total Labor Cost $    2,520 

Total Maintenance 

Cost $  13,274 

Total Labor Cost $    2,520 

Total $  15,794 

Annual Labor Costs

27



11

HOW OTHER CITIES COMPARE

ANNUAL FOOTBALL FEES

League Agency Fees Avg. Yearly Fee 

Apopka Pop Warner City of Apopka No Charge -

Clermont Pop Warner School $1500 per month + paint & lights $               5,500 

E. Orange FYFCL OCPS $15 hr field + $15 hr staff $               6,800 

Lake Wales Pop Warner City of Lake Wales $1000 per season + paint & lights $               4,500 

Mt. Dora Pop Warner City of Mt. Dora Games only $               2,000 

Ocoee Pop Warner City of Ocoee No Charge $                     -

Oviedo Pop Warner SCPS $6000 per season +  $100 per Sat $               6,500 

Pine Hills Pop Warner County $1000 per games only $               4,000 

S. Orlando Pop Warner OCPR / Boone HS $15 hr field + $16 hr Utilities + $1500 per Sat $               8,000 

Timber Creek Pop Warner Timber Creek HS $6000 per season +  $100 per Sat $               6,500 

Wekiva Pop Warner OCPS $600 per game + 30 per hr for practices $               6,000 

West Orange Pop Warner City of Winter Garden No Charge $                     -
28



12

HOW OTHER CITIES COMPARE

ANNUAL BASEBALL  FEES

League Agency Fees Avg. Yearly Fee 

Apopka Little League City of Apopka No Charge -

Clermont Little League City of Clermont $125 per team $           12,000.00 

Deland Little League Deland No fees, the league manages the fields (mow, drag, line, etc.) $                         -

Dr. Phillips Little League Orange County $100 per team , $15 per lined field, $3 per hr. for lights $           13,000.00 

East Orange Babe Ruth Orange County $100 per team + $25 every time concession is open $           12,000.00 

Longwood Babe Ruth City of Longwood $120 per team per season $             8,000.00 

Oviedo Babe Ruth City of Oviedo $15 res / $20 non res per child per season $           11,500.00 

S. Orlando Little League Orange County $100 per team , $15 per lined field, $3 per hr. for lights $             9,000.00 

Union Park Orange County $100 per team , $15 per lined field, $3 per hr. for lights $             8,000.00 

Windermere Little League Orange County $100 per team , $15 per lined field, $3 per hr. for lights $           10,000.00 

Winter Garden Little League Winter Garden No fees, the league manages the fields (mow, drag, line, etc.) $                         -

Winter Springs Babe Ruth City of Winter Springs $           12,625.00        29



13

APOPKA HIGH SCHOOL FOOTBALL COSTS

$360
Practice Fields

12hr x $30/ hr

$192
Practice Fields

4 (Buckets) x $48

$263
Game Field

4 x $48 + 1 x $71

$480
Game Fields

16hr x $30/ hr

$480
Weekly Paint Supply 

For Practice Fields

2 (buckets)/ wk x 5wks 

@ $48/bucket

$600
Weekly Painting 

Practice Fields

20hr x $30/ hr

$2,375
TOTAL COSTS

for 5 Weeks

30



14

APOPKA LITTLE LEAGUE

PROPOSED FEES

APOPKA POP WARNER

Current hourly rate:

$20 per hour per field

$10.00 per hour for lights 

$40.00  per field for paint

(Estimate $1,500)

$200 for use of office per year

First Season: $50per team (Estimate $1,750)

Every season thereafter: $100 per team per season 

(Estimate $3,500 per season / $7,000 per year)

APOPKA  HIGH SCHOOL FOOTBALL

First Season:  $1,500 for building and practice fields

$250 per game day

$25.each time concession stand is in use. 

(First Season Estimate $2,700 )                

Every season thereafter: $3,000 for building and

practice fields

$500 per game day

$25 each time concession stand is in use. 

(Est. $5,200 per year)

31



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

3. Splash Pad Update  Glenn A. Irby 
  

32



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

       CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF:  May 04, 2016 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:              Administration 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:     Splash Pads: Bithlo, Clermont, 

  X  OTHER: Presentation                     Lake Mary, Sanford, Tavares, Winter Garden 
  
 

SUBJECT: SPLASH PAD 

 

REQUEST: INFORMATIONAL UPDATE 
  
SUMMARY: 
 

Staff has identified 12 municipal governments in Central Florida that own and operate splash pads.  Staff 

recently surveyed these governments seeking to determine dimensions, bathing load, cost of construction 

and annual operating costs.  Not surprisingly, some of the 12 governments could not readily supply all 

information we asked for. At the same time, City of Apopka staff believes we have gathered enough 

information to make an informed presentation.  The following is applicable: 

 

 Average dimension (8 reporting)   3,079 sq. ft. 

 Average maximum bathing load (11 reporting)  57 

 Average cost to construct    $500,000 

 Average cost per sq. ft. to construct   $124 

 Average annual maintenance cost   $14,200 

 Entry fees per person     $0 - $3 

 Average annual attendance     17,100 

 

Here in Apopka, a restroom facility that would double as a bathhouse/changing area would be needed and 

would add to the overall cost.  An adequately sized restroom facility would add approximately $100,000 to 

the project.  Some entities rent their splash-pad facilities for private parties after normal operating times.  If 

Apopka were to choose to do this, lights also would also become necessary and would be an additional cost.  

Other considerations at additional expenses: an ADA approved parking lot and sidewalk from the lot to the 

splash pad [est. $40,000], pavilions for picnics and parties as well as benches around the splash pad on 

which parents can sit while watching their children. 

 

The governmental entities we interviewed shed light on issues and problems they have had. We also asked 

if they were to construct another pad, what they would do differently?  Staff has this information and will 

refer to such once design begins. 

 

Apopka has for two years held an amount of $250,000 in its budget for construction of a splash pad.  Using 

the costs shared by other governmental entities interviewed, the city could likely construct a 2,016 sq. ft. 

pad.  This space would allow a bathing load of approximately 38 people, again using data compiled during 

this research.  In comparison, this size is small compared to the average above (approximately 35% smaller).  

Costs will also vary depending on amenities added or not considered.  Also please note: Splash pad fixtures 

that move as they spray water add to the cost of construction and annual maintenance.  

 

  
33



 
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

N/A – there is currently $250,000 in the annual operating budget of the city to design and construct a Splash 

Pad.   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

This topic is presented without a recommendation for discussion by the council on how it wishes to proceed.  

If the council wishes to proceed, staff believe the most centralized location for a Splash Pad is Edwards’ 

field east of Kit Land Nelson Park. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

34



Orange County Bithlo Park 

35



Clermont 

36



Lake Mary 

37



Sanford 

38



Tavares 

39



Winter Garden 

40



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. Authorization to engage in negotiations with an Architectural and Engineering Firm to provide design plans for a new Fire 
Station. 

  

41



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

  X  CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: May 4, 2016  

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:              Fire Department            

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:       Ranking     

       OTHER:  
  

 

SUBJECT: ARCHITECTURAL AND ENGINEERING CONSULTING SERVICES FOR A 

FIRE STATION [RFQ 2016-06]. 

 

REQUEST: APPROVE THE RANKING OF THE TOP THREE FIRMS AND DIRECT STAFF 

TO NEGOTIATE A CONTRACT USING THE CCNA PROCESS, WHICH WILL 

BE BROUGHT BACK BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL AT A LATER DATE FOR 

APPROVAL. 
  
SUMMARY: 

 

The 2015-2016 FY budget included the request for an additional fire station, which was approved by City 

Council.  On March 29, 2016, the City received qualifications from interested Architectural and 

Engineering firms for the purpose of providing design plans and construction documents for the new 

station.  An Evaluation Committee consisting of the City Administrator, the Assistant Public Services 

Director and the Deputy Fire Chief reviewed the qualifications and ranked the top three firms as follows: 

 

1. Lunz Prebor Fowler Architects, Inc. 

2. CPH, Inc. 

3. Bentley Architects and Engineers, Inc. 

 

Staff is requesting authorization to negotiate a contract with Lunz Prebor Fowler Architects, using the 

Consultants Competitive Negotiations Act (CCNA). If an agreement cannot be negotiated, staff would 

then attempt to negotiate with the second firm and so on until an acceptable contract can be reached. At a 

later date the negotiated contract will be presented to City Council for final approval and will include a 

request to award continuing service contracts to the remainder two companies. 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

N/A    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Approve the ranking of the three firms and direct staff to negotiate a contract using the CCNA process, 

which will be advertised and brought back before City Council for final approval. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 42



 
RFQ 2016-06 Request for Qualifications 

Architectural and Engineering Consulting Services 
Evaluated Scores for Ranking 

 
 

 
 
 

Firms Glenn Irby Kevin Burgess Ray Thompson Totals Ranking 

Lunz Prebor Fowler 
Architects, Inc. 

 
100 

 
91 

 
88 

 
279 

 
1st 

CPH, Inc. 90 90 89 269 2nd 

Bentley Architects and 
Engineers, Inc. 

 
85 

 
89 

 
90 

 
264 

 
3rd 

43



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

2. Authorize the Vehicle for Hire Permit Application for T-Max Transportation Services, LLC – Maxo Angervil 
  

44



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

X CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: May 4, 2016 

 PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Application 

 OTHER:    
  
SUBJECT:  VEHICLE FOR HIRE PERMIT – T-MAX TRANSPORTATION SERVICES, 

LLC 

   

REQUEST:  AUTHORIZE ISSUANCE OF A VEHICLE FOR HIRE PERMIT TO T-MAX 

TRANSPORTATION SERVICES, LLC OWNED BY MAXO ANGERVIL 
  
SUMMARY: 
 

Maxo Angervil, owner of T-Max Transportation Services, LLC, is requesting approval to operate a 6-

passenger Range Rover as an Uber driver. 

 

The application has been reviewed and approved by the Police, Fire, Community Development Department 

and Risk Management.  The applicant has also provided proof of liability insurance, submitted to and passed 

a background check, and provided a hold harmless agreement.  If approved the permit would be valid for 

one-year. 

  
FUNDING SOURCE 

 

N/A 

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Authorize issuance of a Vehicle for Hire permit to T-Max Transportation Services, LLC, owned by Maxo 

Angervil. 

 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

45



46



47



48



49



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

3. Authorize the Vehicle for Hire Permit Application for U-First Transportation – Ronald Joseph 
  

50



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

X CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: May 4, 2016 

 PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Application 

 OTHER:    
  
SUBJECT:  VEHICLE FOR HIRE PERMIT – U-FIRST TRANSPORTATION  

   

REQUEST:  AUTHORIZE ISSUANCE OF A VEHICLE FOR HIRE PERMIT TO U-FIRST 

TRANSPORTATION OWNED BY RONALD JOSEPH 
  
SUMMARY: 
 

Ronald Joseph, owner of U-First Transportation, is requesting approval to operate a 6-passenger Cadillac 

Escalade as an Uber driver. 

 

The application has been reviewed and approved by the Police, Fire, Community Development Department 

and Risk Management.  The applicant has also provided proof of liability insurance, submitted to and passed 

a background check, and provided a hold harmless agreement.  If approved the permit would be valid for 

one-year. 

  
FUNDING SOURCE:   

 

N/A   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Authorize issuance of a Vehicle for Hire permit to U-First Transportation, owned by Ronald Joseph. 
  
 
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

51



52



53



54



55



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

4. Authorize the Capital Facility Fees Payment Agreement for Ambergate Townhomes. 
  

56



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

X CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: May 4, 2016 

 PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Vicinity Map 

 OTHER:   Agreement 
  
SUBJECT:  AMBERGATE TOWNHOMES 

   

REQUEST:  AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR OR HIS DESIGNEE TO EXECUTE THE 

CAPITAL FACILITY FEES PAYMENT AGREEMENT. 
  
SUMMARY: 
 

The City’s standard Capital Facility Fees Payment Agreement has been prepared for Ambergate 

Townhomes, located in unincorporated Orange County, on the east side of South Sheeler Avenue at the 

intersection of South Sheeler Avenue and East 10th Street. 

  
FUNDING SOURCE:   

 

N/A 

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Authorize the Mayor or his designee to execute the Capital Facility Fees Payment Agreement for Ambergate 

Townhomes. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
  

57



CITY COUNCIL – MAY 4, 2016 

AMBERGATE TOWNHOMES CAPITAL FACILITY FEES PAYMENT AGREEMENT 
PAGE 2 

 
 

 

 

 

AMBERGATE TOWNHOMES 

Owner:  Park Square Enterprises, LLC 

Location: On the east side of South Sheeler Avenue at the intersection of  

South Sheeler Avenue and East 10th Street 

Parcel ID #S:  14-21-28-0000-00-085; 14-21-28-0000-00-117; 14-21-28-0000-00-009 

20.63 +/- Acres 
 

 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 
  

14-21-28-0000-00-085 
13.97 +/- ac 

 

14-21-28-0000-00-117 
3.33 +/- ac 

 

14-21-28-0000-00-009 
3.33 +/- ac 

 

58



59



60



61



62



63



64



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

5. Authorize the Orange County Supervisor of Elections to use the Northwest Recreation Complex as a polling location. 
  

65



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

  X  CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: May 4, 2016 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:             Recreation 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:      Agreement 

       OTHER:  
  

 

SUBJECT: ORANGE COUNTY SUPERVIOISOR OF ELECTIONS POLLING PLACE 

 

REQUEST: PERMISSION FOR ORANGE COUNTY SUPERVIOISOR OF ELECTIONS TO 

USE NORTHWEST RECREATION COMPLEX AS A POLLING LOCATION. 
  
SUMMARY: 

 

The Orange County Supervisor of Elections is requesting to utilize the multipurpose room at the Northwest 

Recreation Complex as a 2016 polling location.  No rental fees would be charged per Florida State Statue 

which designates tax-supported buildings to be made available for use as polling places upon the request of 

the Supervisor of Elections (§101.71, Fla. Stat.).  The facility is requested for the Primary Election on 

Tuesday August 30, 2016 through Wednesday August 31, 2016 and the General Election on Tuesday 

November 8, 2016 through Wednesday November 9, 2016.  

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

N/A    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Authorize the Orange County Supervisor of Elections to use the Northwest Recreation Complex as a 2016 

Polling Location. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

66



SUPERVISOR OF ELECTIONS 
POLLING PLACE AVAILABILITY 

2016 ELECTIONS 

H:\Elections\Elections\Polling Places\PP  Availability  Form 16 blank.doc     Page 1 of 2 

Revised 4/27/2016 

                                                                             PCT# _______ 

1. Contact Information:   

ADDRESS:  

FACILITY NAME: _______________________________________________________ 

ADDRESS: ________________________________________________________________________  FACILITY PHONE #________________________ 

FAX # __________________________     EMAIL ADDRESS: __________________________________________________ 

MAILING ADDRESS: ____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
(if different from above) 
 

Who is the facility contact person in your office who will manage election matters (equipment delivery and pickup, 
setup, etc.) 

____________________________________ _____________________________  _____________________________ 
Name     Phone Number (Business Hours)  Phone Number (Other)   

 

Alternative Contact Person:  _____________________________________  ______________________________ 

               Name      Phone Number   

                         
Hours of operation: Mon. ______-______ Tues. ______-______ Wed. ______-______ Th. ______-______ Fri.______-______      

2. Facility Information: 
 

Will voting take place in the same room as in 2014:  
    YES  NO  If no, what room will be used?   

    ____________________________________________________    
 

Can the following be provided for use on Election Day? 

    YES  NO   If no, how many can you provide? 

   five tables _________ 

   ten chairs _________ 

Since 2014, have there been any structural changes or are there plans to make changes to the following areas? 

    YES  NO    If yes to any, please describe: 

   …the building?  ____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

   …the voting room? ____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

   …the parking lot? ___________________________________________________________________________ 

Northwest Recreation Complex

3710 Jason Dwelley Parkway 407-703-1784

407-703-1783 dburgoon@apopka.net

David Burgoon 407-703-1784

Cindy Edwards 407-703-1784

8am

X

9pm 8am 9pm 8am 9pm 8am 9pm 8am 9pm

New Location

X

X

X

X

X

67



SUPERVISOR OF ELECTIONS 
POLLING PLACE AVAILABILITY 

2016 ELECTIONS 

H:\Elections\Elections\Polling Places\PP  Availability  Form 16 blank.doc     Page 2 of 2 

Revised 4/27/2016 

 

What company provides your electric?   OUC       PROGRESS ENERGY          OTHER: _______________________ 

            YES       NO 

Does the voting room run on a generator when power goes out?         

Can poll workers set up the Voting Room on the Monday prior to the election?  

If no, can our poll workers arrive at 5:30 AM on Election morning? 

What arrangements will be made for access to the building Election morning? 
 

24 hour facility     Poll worker needs to pick up key  
 
Doors will be opened by our staff    We will provide key to be used for all elections 

Emergency Contact Person for morning entry: ____________________________________________________ 

Phone Number: ________________________________________ 
 
Election equipment will be delivered on the Monday preceding the elections, and picked up the Wednesday 
following each Election. Please give us a 4 hour time frame that would be convenient for delivery and pickup of 
our equipment:  

Delivery: __________ to __________        Pickup: __________ to __________         
             
 

3. Other Information: 
Comments or special requirements/circumstances: 

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

OFFICE USE ONLY 

New survey needed: Y  N   PSC__________________          Tax Supported? ____________ 

Contact Information updated by: __________     Delivery/Pickup times entered by: ___________ date: __________ 

Election Day Screen completed by: _________    Payment screen completed by: ___________ date: __________ 

X Duke Energy

X

X

X

Lorena Potter

1:00 pm 5:00 pm 1:00 pm 5:00 pm

68



SUPERVISOR OF ELECTIONS 
119 W. KALEY ST. 

ORLANDO, FL 32806 

 
AGREEMENT FOR USE AS A POLLING PLACE 

TAX SUPPORTED FACILITY 

PRECINCT _______ 

 

This agreement is entered into this __________day of _____________________, 20_______, by and between Bill 

Cowles, in his official capacity as Supervisor of Elections for Orange County, Florida, hereafter referred 

to as SOE, and_________________________________________________________________________________, hereafter 

referred to as "owner/manager/organization", whose telephone number is ______________________________. 

WHEREAS, SOE desires to obtain the use of the premises and facilities known as:   

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Located at: _________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________________________________("premises") 

for use as a polling place for elections in calendar year 2016;  and WHEREAS, 

"owner/manager/organization" is agreeable to allowing the “premises” to be used as a polling place 

under the terms and conditions set forth below. ACCORDINGLY, the parties agree as follows: 

1. "Owner/manager/organization" agrees to allow the following described areas: 

 Room_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 Other areas________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

including available parking areas and directly connecting passageways to be used as a polling place on 

the following election dates:  

Tuesday, March 15, 2016  Presidential Preference Primary 

Tuesday, August 30, 2016  Primary Election  

Tuesday, November 8, 2016  General Election  

The “premises” are to be occupied and used solely by SOE from the time that poll workers arrive until all 

Election Day activities are complete. 

2. "Owner/manager/organization" will permit SOE to gain access to the “premises” on other necessary 

dates and times for purposes of carrying out elections activities, including but not limited to, 

delivering, setting up and removing of election equipment, and supplies. Arrangements between the 

parties with regard to dates and times for delivery and pick-up of voting equipment, supplies and 

other materials shall be by mutual agreement.

16April28th

407-703-1784

David Burgoon- Director of Recreation, City of Apopka

Northwest Recreation Complex meeting room  

3710 Jason Dwelley Parkway Apopka, Florida 32712

Meeting Room and Lobby

69



3. Per Florida Statute Chapter 101.71(5) which states "Public, tax-supported buildings shall be made 

available for use as polling places upon the request of the Supervisor of Elections” there will be no 

compensation for use of this facility.  

4.  During the duration of this Agreement, each party shall maintain insurance or self-insurance 

coverage of such types and in such amounts as may be deemed necessary by each party. SOE shall also 

maintain “all-risk” property insurance covering its equipment and other personal property for the full 

replacement value of such property. Likewise, “Owner/manager/organization” shall maintain “all-

risk” property insurance covering the building and its personal property for the full replacement value 

of such property. Each party hereby agrees to waive and release the other from all claims related to or 

arising out of damage to its respective property, howsoever caused, to the extent the claim or damage 

to its respective insurance whether or not said insurance was in effect as required. 

 Each party shall defend, indemnify and hold the other party harmless from all claims, damages, losses 

and expenses arising out of or resulting from the negligent performance of its respective operations 

under the Agreement; however, nothing contained herein shall constitute a waiver by SOE of its 

sovereign immunity or the provisions of Florida Statutes Section 768.28  

5. "Owner/manager/organization" agrees to permit entry to the “premises” on Election morning at 

(circle one) 5:30 / 6:00 a.m. according to the following arrangements: 

       24 hour facility     Poll worker needs to pick up key  

       Doors will be opened by our staff    We will provide key to be used for all elections 

Emergency Contact Person for morning entry: __________________________________________________________ 

Phone Number(s): (work)___________________(home)__________________ (cell)______________________________ 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on the dates stated below: 

 

FACILITY CONTACT      ORANGE COUNTY SUPERVISOR OF 

ELECTIONS 

 

Signature: ___________________________________   ___________________________________________          

Print Name: _________________________________          Bill Cowles 

 

Date: ____________________________            Date: ______________________ 

 

X

Lorena Potter

407-703-1784

David Burgoon

David Burgoon

4/28/16

70



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. Ordinance 2493 – Second Reading – Change of Zoning - Quasi-Judicial   David Moon 
  

71



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: May 4, 2016 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 

X OTHER: Ordinance  Vicinity Map 

    Adjacent Zoning Map 

    Adjacent Uses Map 

    Existing Uses 

    Ordinance No. 2493 
  
SUBJECT:  ORDINANCE NO. 2493 – CHANGE OF ZONING – LITTLE BROWNIE 

PROPERTIES, INC. 

   

REQUEST:  SECOND READING & ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE NO. 2493 – CHANGE OF 

ZONING – LITTLE BROWNIE PROPERTIES, INC., FROM “COUNTY” IND-

2/IND-3 (ZIP) TO “CITY” I-1 (RESTRICTED INDUSTRIAL); (PARCEL I.D. 

NOS. 15-21-28-0000-00-077 & 15-21-28-0000-00-078). 
  
SUMMARY: 
 
OWNER/APPLICANT: Little Brownie Properties, Inc. 
 
LOCATION: 532 E 13th Street 
 
EXISTING USE:  Vacant 
 
FLUM DESIGNATION: Industrial 
 
CURRENT ZONING: “County” IND-2/IND-3 (ZIP) 
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT:  Light industrial development/wholesale warehousing  
 
 
TRACT SIZE:   17.47 +/- acres 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING: 380,496 sq. ft. 
    PROPOSED: 456,595 sq. ft. 
 

 

  
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

72



CITY COUNCIL – MAY 5, 2016 

LITTLE BROWNIE PROPERTIES, INC. – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 2 
 
 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  Presently, the subject property has not yet been assigned a “City” 

zoning category.  Applicant is requesting the City to assign a zoning classification of I-1 (Restricted 

Industrial) to the property.  The subject property was annexed into the City of Apopka on January 20, 

2010, through the adoption of Ordinance No. 2143.  The proposed change of zoning is being requested 

by the owner/applicant.   

 

A request to assign a change of zoning to I-1 (Restricted Industrial) is compatible to the adjacent 

zoning classifications and with the general character of abutting properties and surrounding area.  The 

property owner is requesting the I-1 (Restricted Industrial) zoning classification to accommodate the 

use of the property for light industrial/wholesale warehousing.  This use is consistent with the existing 

future land use, proposed zoning district and compatible with the general character of surrounding 

zoning and uses. 

 

The change of zoning application covers approximately 17.47 acres.  

 

In conjunction with state requirements, staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined 

that adequate public facilities exist to support this land use change (see attached Zoning Report). 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The existing and proposed use of the property is 

consistent with the Industrial (max 0.60 FAR) Future Land Use designation and the City’s proposed 

I-1 (Restricted Industrial) Zoning classification.  Site development cannot exceed the intensity 

allowed by the Future Land Use policies. Based on the adjacent road system and nearby residential 

neighborhoods, I-1 (Restricted Industrial) Industrial is more suitable and compatible than I-2 

Industrial zoning. 

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  The proposed rezoning is to a non-residential zoning district 

and, therefore, a capacity enhancement agreement with OCPS is not necessary. 

 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days 

before any public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on February 

5, 2016 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

March 8, 2016 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

April 20, 2016 - City Council (7:00 pm) - 1st Reading 

May 4, 2016 – City Council (1:30 pm) - 2nd Reading 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

February 19, 2016 – Public Notice and Notification 

April 8, 2016 – Ordinance Heading ¼ Page w/Map Ad 

 

  

73



CITY COUNCIL – MAY 5, 2016 

LITTLE BROWNIE PROPERTIES, INC. – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 3 
 

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 
The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding area, and recommends 
approval of the change in zoning from “County” IND-2/IND-3 (ZIP) to “City” I-1 (Restricted 
Industrial) for the property owned by Little Brownie Properties, Inc., located at 532 E 13th Street. 
 
The Planning Commission, at its meeting on March 8, 2016, found the rezoning to be consistent 
with the Comprehensive Plan and the Land Development Code and recommended approval (5-0) of 
the change in zoning from “County” IND-2/IND-3 (ZIP) to “City” I-1 (Restricted Industrial) for the 
property owned by Little Brownie Properties, Inc., located at 532 E 13th Street. 
 
The City Council, at its meeting on April 20, 2016, accepted the First Reading of Ordinance No. 
2493 and held it over for Second Reading and Adoption on May 4, 2016. 
 
Adopt Ordinance No. 2493. 
 
Note: This item is considered Quasi-Judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be 
incorporated into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

  

74



CITY COUNCIL – MAY 5, 2016 

LITTLE BROWNIE PROPERTIES, INC. – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 4 
 

ZONING REPORT 
 
RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (County) Low Density Residential (0-4 du/ac) R-1 R-O-W & Vacant Residential 

East (City) Industrial (max 0.60 FAR) I-1  Warehousing 

South (City) Industrial (max 0.60 FAR) 
Residential Medium (0-10 du/ac) 
Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) 

I-1 
R-2 
R-1 

Vacant Industrial 
Vacant Residential 
Single-Family Residential 

West (City)  Residential Medium (0-10 du/ac) R-1AA Vacant  

 
LAND USE & TRAFFIC 
COMPATIBILITY: The subject property fronts and is accessed by a local roadway (E 13th 

Street).   
 
COMPREHENSIVE  
PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed I-1 (Restricted Industrial) zoning is consistent with the 

City’s Industrial (max 0.60 FAR) Future Land Use designation and with 
the character of the surrounding area and future proposed development. 
The I-1 (Restricted Industrial) zoning classification is one of the 
acceptable zoning categories allowed within the Industrial Future Land 
Use Designation.   Development Plans shall not exceed the density 
allowed in the adopted Future Land Use Designation. 

I-1 DISTRICT 
REQUIREMENTS:  

Minimum Living Area: NA 

Minimum Site Area: 15,000 sq. ft. 

Minimum Lot Width 100 ft. 

Setbacks: Front: 25 ft. 

 Rear: 10 ft. (30 ft. to residential)  

 Side: 10 ft. 

 Corner 25 ft.  
Based on the above zoning standards, the subject parcels comply with 
code requirements for the I-1 (Restricted Industrial) district. 

 
BUFFERYARD  
REQUIREMENTS: 1. Areas adjacent to all road rights-of-way shall provide a minimum 
  25-foot landscaped bufferyard.  

 
2. Areas adjacent to agricultural uses or districts shall provide a 

minimum of ten feet abutting the property line with landscaping and 
a six-foot-high masonry wall. 

 
3. Areas adjacent to residential uses or districts shall provide a six-foot-

high masonry wall within a minimum of 50-foot landscaped 
bufferyard. 

 

75



CITY COUNCIL – MAY 5, 2016 

LITTLE BROWNIE PROPERTIES, INC. – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 5 
 

 

4. Industrial uses adjacent to nonresidential, nonindustrial uses or 

districts shall provide one of the following: 

 

a. A minimum of 25 feet abutting the property with landscaping 

and an earth berm, measuring three feet with a 3:1 slope; or 

 

b. A minimum six-foot-high masonry wall within a minimum of 

ten-foot landscaped bufferyard. 

 

ALLOWABLE  

USES: Any C-3 Commercial District permitted use and wholesale distribution, 

storage and light manufacturing, including: manufacture and 

processing of novelties, bakery and confectionary products, garments, 

scientific, electrical, instruments or equipment.  Bus, cab and truck 

repair.  Dyeing, dry cleaning and laundering. Machinery sales and 

machine shops. Cold storage and frozen food lockers.  All other uses 

not prohibited, and similar and compatible to those within the I-1 

Restricted Industrial Zoning District. 

  

76



CITY COUNCIL – MAY 5, 2016 

LITTLE BROWNIE PROPERTIES, INC. – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 6 
 

Little Brownie Properties, Inc. 
532 E 13th Street 
17.47 +/- Acres 

Existing Maximum Allowable Development:  380,496 sq. ft. 
Proposed Maximum Allowable Development: 456,595 sq. ft. 

Proposed Zoning Change 
From: “County” IND-2/IND-3 (ZIP) 

To: “City” I-1 (Restricted Industrial) 
Parcel ID #: 15-21-28-0000-00-077 & 15-21-28-0000-00-078 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 
 
 

SUBJECT 

PROPERTIES 

77



CITY COUNCIL – MAY 5, 2016 

LITTLE BROWNIE PROPERTIES, INC. – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 7 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 

 

 

 

78



CITY COUNCIL – MAY 5, 2016 

LITTLE BROWNIE PROPERTIES, INC. – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 8 
 

 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

79



CITY COUNCIL – MAY 5, 2016 

LITTLE BROWNIE PROPERTIES, INC. – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 9 
 

 

 

 

 

 

EXISTING USES 

 

 

 
 

 

80



 
ORDINANCE NO. 2493 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING 

THE ZONING FROM “COUNTY” IND-2 (ZIP) AND IND-3 (ZIP) TO 

“CITY” I-1 (RESTRICTED INDUSTRIAL) FOR CERTAIN REAL 

PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED SOUTH OF EAST 13TH STREET, 

WEST OF SHEELER AVENUE, COMPRISING 17.49 ACRES MORE OR 

LESS, AND OWNED BY LITTLE BROWNIE PROPERTIES, INC.; 

PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 WHEREAS, to manage the growth, the City of Apopka, Florida, finds it in the best interest 
of the public health, safety and welfare of its citizens to establish zoning classifications within the 
City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka has requested a change in zoning on said property as 
identified in Section I of this ordinance; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the proposed I-1 (Restricted Industrial) zoning has been found to be 
consistent with the City of Apopka Comprehensive Plan, and the City of Apopka Land 
Development Code. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 
Florida, as follows: 
 
 Section I.  That the zoning classification of the following described property, being situated 
in the City of Apopka, Florida, is hereby I-1 (Restricted Industrial), as defined in the Apopka Land 
Development Code. 
 
 Legal Description: 
 

PARCEL 1:  NW1/4 OF SE1/4 (LESS W1/8 & N3/4) OF SEC 15-21-28. 
Parcel ID No. 15-21-28-0000-00-077 
8.74 +/- acres 
 
PARCEL 2:  E 395.2 FT OF W 560.2 FT OF N3/4 OF NW1/4 OF SE1/4 (LESS N 
30 FT FOR R/W) OF SEC 15-21-28 
Parcel ID No. 15-21-28-0000-00-078 
8.75 +/- acres 
 

 Section II.  That the zoning classification is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan of the 

City of Apopka, Florida. 

 

 Section III.  That the Community Development Director, or the Director’s designee, is 

hereby authorized to amend, alter, and implement the official zoning maps of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, to include said designation.   

 

 

81



ORDINANCE NO. 2493 

PAGE 2 
 

 

 Section IV. That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance 

proves to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the 

validity, force or effect of any other section or portion of section or subsection or part of this 

ordinance. 

 

 Section V.  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed.   

 

 Section VI.  That this Ordinance shall take effect upon the date of adoption. 

 

 
 

                       
 
 

       _____________________________________ 
       Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                                  
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: February 19, 2016 

    April 8, 2016 

READ FIRST TIME:  April 20, 2016 
 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     

 
 
May 4, 2016 

82



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

2. Ordinance 2494 – Second Reading – Annexation      David Moon 
  

83



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: May 4, 2016 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Exhibit “A” – Summary 

X OTHER:   Ordinance No. 2494 

    Vicinity Map 
  
SUBJECT:  2016 ANNEXATION – CYCLE NO. 2 

   

REQUEST:  SECOND READING & ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE NO. 2494 – SBKP, LLC. 
  
SUMMARY: 
 
OWNER:  SBKP, LLC 

 

LOCATION:  312 Old Dixie Highway 

 

LAND USE:  Refer to Exhibit “A” 

 

EXISTING USE: Refer to Exhibit “A” 

 

TRACT SIZE:  0.26 +/- acre 
 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: The proposed annexation shall be on the basis of the existing County 
Future Land Use and Zoning Designations.  The assignment of a City Future Land Use and Zoning 
designation will occur at a later date, and through action by the City Council. 
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 15 days prior to 
the first reading of any annexation ordinance.  The City provided notification to the County on April 1, 
2016. 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
April 8, 2016 - 1/4 Page Public Hearing Advertisement 
April 15, 2016 - 1/4 Page Public Hearing Advertisement 
April 22, 2016 - Ordinance Headings Advertisement 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
April 20, 2016 (7:00 pm) - City Council 1st Reading 
May 4, 2016 (1:30 pm) - City Council 2nd Reading and Adoption 
 
 
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 
 
 
 

 
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 84



CITY COUNCIL – MAY 4, 2016 
2016 ANNEXATION – CYCLE NO. 2 
PAGE 2 

 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the 2016 Annexation – Cycle No. 2 
 
The City Council, at its meeting on April 20, 2016, accepted the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2494, and 
held it over for Second Reading and Adoption on May 4, 2016. 
 
Adopt Ordinance No. 2494. 
 

85



1 

 

 
EXHIBIT “A” 

CITY OF APOPKA 
2016 ANNEXATION CYCLE # 2 

TOTAL ACRES:  15.3 +/- 
ANNEXATION ORDINANCE NO.: 2494 & 2495 

Adopted this 4th day of May, 2016 

ORD. 

NO. 

ITEM 

NO. 

OWNER’S NAME LOCATION PARCEL NUMBER ACRES 

+/- 

EXISTING 

USE 

FUTURE LAND USE 

(COUNTY) 

 
 

2494 
 

 
 

1 SBKP, LLC 312 OLD DIXIE HIGHWAY 
09-21-28-7552-01-070 

 
0.26 

SFR (1) 
 

LOW DENSITY 
RESIDENTIAL 

MAX. 4DU/AC 

 
 

2495 

 
 

2 
JACK V. CRAVEY 

JOYCE A. CRAVEY 
3815 PHILS LANE 

3827 HIDEAWAY ROAD 
24-20-27-0000-00-112 
24-20-27-0000-00-056 

 
13.35 
1.69 

15.04 

VACANT LAND 
RURAL 1DU/10ACRES/ 

AGRICULTURAL 

g:\Shared\4020\PLANNING_ZONING\Annexations\2016 Cycle 2 Spreadsheet  

   

86



ORDINANCE NO. 2494 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND ITS 
TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT TO 
FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED LANDS 
SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, OWNED BY SBKP, 
LLC LOCATED AT 312 OLD DIXIE HIGHWAY; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS 
TO THE CITY CLERK, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS,  SBKP, LLC, owner thereof, has petitioned the City Council of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, to annex the property located at 312 Old Dixie Highway; and  

 

 WHEREAS, Florida Statute 171.044 of the General Laws of Florida provide that a municipal 

corporation may annex property into its corporate limits upon voluntary petition of the owners, by passing 

and adopting a non-emergency ordinance to annex said property; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida is desirous of annexing and redefining 

the boundaries of the municipality to include the subject property pursuant to Florida Statute 171.044. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, as 

follows: 

 

 SECTION I:  That the following described properties, being situated in Orange County, Florida, 

totaling 0.26 +/- acre, and graphically depicted by the attached Exhibit "A”, is hereby annexed into the City 

of Apopka, Florida, pursuant to the voluntary annexation provisions of Chapter 171.044, Florida Statutes, 

and other applicable laws: 

 

Legal Descriptions: 

 

ROBINSON & SAMUELS ADDITION TO APOPKA SECOND SECTION K/106 LOT 7 

& E1/2 LOT 8 BLK A. Parcel I.D. No.: 09-21-28-7552-01-070 

Containing 0.26+/- acre 

 

SECTION II:  That the corporate territorial limits of the City of Apopka, Florida, are hereby 

redefined to include said land herein described and annexed.

 

SECTION III:  That the City Council will designate the land use classification and zoning category 

of these annexed lands in accordance with applicable City ordinances and State laws. 

 

 SECTION IV: That the land herein described and future inhabitants of the land herein described 

shall be liable for all debts and obligations and be subject to all species of taxation, laws, ordinances and 

regulations of the City. 

 

SECTION V:  That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance proves to 

be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the validity, force, or 

effect of any other section or portion of a section or subsection or part of this ordinance. 

 

 

87



 

 

ORDINANCE NO.: 2494 

PAGE 2  

 

 SECTION VI:  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 

 

 SECTION VII: That this ordinance shall take effect upon passage and adoption, thereafter the City 

Clerk is hereby directed to file this ordinance with the Clerk of the Circuit Court in and for Orange County, 

Florida; the Orange County Property Appraiser; and the Department of State of the State of Florida.  
 
 

            

ATTEST:  

 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Linda Goff, City Clerk 

 

DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING: April 8, 2016 

April 15, 2016 

April 22, 2016  

 

 
READ FIRST TIME: April 20, 2016 
 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     May 4, 2016 
 
 
 
 

Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                                  
 

88



 

ANNEXATION 

SBKP, LLC 

312 OLD DIXIE HIGHWAY 

             

     

         Exhibit “A”                  

         Ord. # 2494 

         Parcel ID: 09-21-28-7552-01-070 

      

 Total Acres: 0.26 +/-      

 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 

89



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

3. Ordinance 2495 – Second Reading – Annexation      David Moon 
  

90



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: May 4, 2016 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Exhibit “A” – Summary 

X OTHER:   Ordinance No. 2495 

    Vicinity Map 
  
SUBJECT:  2016 ANNEXATION – CYCLE NO. 2 

   

REQUEST:  SECOND READING & ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE NO. 2495 – JACK V. 

CRAVEY AND JOYCE A. CRAVEY. 
  
SUMMARY: 
 
OWNERS:  JACK V. CRAVEY AND JOYCE A CRAVEY 

 

LOCATION:  3815 Phils Lane and 3827 Hideaway Road 

 

LAND USE:  Refer to Exhibit “A” 

 

EXISTING USE: Refer to Exhibit “A” 

 

TRACT SIZE:  15.04 +/- acres 
 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: The proposed annexation shall be on the basis of the existing County 
Future Land Use and Zoning Designations.  The assignment of a City Future Land Use and Zoning 
designation will occur at a later date, and through action by the City Council. 
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 15 days prior to 
the first reading of any annexation ordinance.  The City provided notification to the County on April 1, 
2016. 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
April 8, 2016 - 1/4 Page Public Hearing Advertisement 
April 15, 2016 - 1/4 Page Public Hearing Advertisement 
April 22, 2016 - Ordinance Headings Advertisement 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
April 20, 2016 (7:00 pm) - City Council 1st Reading 
May 4, 2016 (1:30 pm) - City Council 2nd Reading and Adoption 
 
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 
 

 
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 
 

91



CITY COUNCIL – MAY 4, 2016 
2016 ANNEXATION – CYCLE NO. 2 
PAGE 2 

 
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the 2016 Annexation – Cycle No. 2 
 
The City Council, at its meeting on April 20, 2016, accepted the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2495, and 
held it over for Second Reading and Adoption on May 4, 2016. 
 
Adopt Ordinance No. 2495. 
 

92



1 

 

 
EXHIBIT “A” 

CITY OF APOPKA 
2016 ANNEXATION CYCLE # 2 

TOTAL ACRES:  15.3 +/- 
ANNEXATION ORDINANCE NO.: 2494 & 2495 

Adopted this 4th day of May, 2016 

ORD. 

NO. 

ITEM 

NO. 

OWNER’S NAME LOCATION PARCEL NUMBER ACRES 

+/- 

EXISTING 

USE 

FUTURE LAND USE 

(COUNTY) 

 
 

2494 
 

 
 

1 SBKP, LLC 312 OLD DIXIE HIGHWAY 
09-21-28-7552-01-070 

 
0.26 

SFR (1) 
 

LOW DENSITY 
RESIDENTIAL 

MAX. 4DU/AC 

 
 

2495 

 
 

2 
JACK V. CRAVEY 

JOYCE A. CRAVEY 
3815 PHILS LANE 

3827 HIDEAWAY ROAD 
24-20-27-0000-00-112 
24-20-27-0000-00-056 

 
13.35 
1.69 

15.04 

VACANT LAND 
RURAL 1DU/10ACRES/ 

AGRICULTURAL 

g:\Shared\4020\PLANNING_ZONING\Annexations\2016 Cycle 2 Spreadsheet  

   

93



ORDINANCE NO. 2495 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND 
ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT 
TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED 
LANDS SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, 
OWNED BY JACK V. CRAVEY AND JOYCE A. CRAVEY LOCATED AT 
3815 PHILS LANE AND 3827 HIDEAWAY ROAD; PROVIDING FOR 
DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, 
AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS,  Jack A. Cravey and Joyce V. Cravey, owners thereof, have petitioned the 

City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, to annex the properties located at 3815 Phils Lane 

and 3827 Hideaway Road; and  

 

 WHEREAS, Florida Statute 171.044 of the General Laws of Florida provide that a 

municipal corporation may annex property into its corporate limits upon voluntary petition of the 

owners, by passing and adopting a non-emergency ordinance to annex said property; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida is desirous of annexing and 

redefining the boundaries of the municipality to include the subject property pursuant to Florida 

Statute 171.044. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, as follows: 

 

 SECTION I:  That the following described properties, being situated in Orange County, 

Florida, totaling 15.04 +/- acres, and graphically depicted by the attached Exhibit "A”, is hereby 

annexed into the City of Apopka, Florida, pursuant to the voluntary annexation provisions of 

Chapter 171.044, Florida Statutes, and other applicable laws: 

 

Legal Descriptions: 

 

W1/2 OF NW1/4 OF NE1/4 SEC 24-20-27 SEE 4724/4396 & (LESS PT TAKEN 

FOR R/W PER 10755/8244) Parcel I.D. No. 24-20-27-0000-00-056 Containing 

1.69 +/- acres  

 

and; 

 

W1/2 OF NW1/4 OF NE1/4 SEC 24-20-27 SEE 4724/4396 & (LESS PT TAKEN 

FOR R/W PER 10755/8244) Parcel I.D. No. 24-20-27-0000-00-112 Containing 

13.35 +/- acres 

 

Combined Total Acres 15.04 +/- 

 

     SECTION II:  That the corporate territorial limits of the City of Apopka, Florida, are hereby 

redefined to include said land herein described and annexed.

94



 

ORDINANCE NO.: 2495 

PAGE 2  

 

SECTION III:  That the City Council will designate the land use classification and zoning category 

of these annexed lands in accordance with applicable City ordinances and State laws. 

 

SECTION IV: That the land herein described and future inhabitants of the land herein described 

shall be liable for all debts and obligations and be subject to all species of taxation, laws, ordinances and 

regulations of the City. 

 

SECTION V:  That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance proves to 

be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the validity, force, or 

effect of any other section or portion of a section or subsection or part of this ordinance. 

 

 SECTION VI:  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 

 

 SECTION VII: That this ordinance shall take effect upon passage and adoption, thereafter the City 

Clerk is hereby directed to file this ordinance with the Clerk of the Circuit Court in and for Orange County, 

Florida; the Orange County Property Appraiser; and the Department of State of the State of Florida.  

 
 
 

            

 

ATTEST:  

 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Linda Goff, City Clerk 

 

DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING:  April 8, 2016 

April 15, 2016 

April 22, 2016  

 

 
READ FIRST TIME: April 20, 2016 
 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     May 4, 2016 
 
 
 
 

Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                                  
 

95



 

ANNEXATION 

JACK AND JOYCE CRAVEY 

3815 PHILS LANE 

3827 HIDEAWAY ROAD 

             

     

         Exhibit “A”                  

         Ord. # 2495 

         Parcel ID: 24-20-27-0000-00-112 

            24-20-27-0000-00-056 

      

 Total Acres: 15.04 +/-      

 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 

96



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. Final Development Plan/Plat – Silver Oak Subdivision- Quasi-Judicial   David Moon 
  

97



 
CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: May 4, 2016 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Vicinity Map 

X OTHER: Plat Approval  Aerial Map 

    Subdivision Plan 

    Landscape Plan 

    Design Standards 

    Hardscape Plan 

    Home Elevations 

    Typical Lot Layout 

    Plat 
  
SUBJECT:  SILVER OAK SUBDIVISION – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN AND PLAT. 

   

REQUEST:  APPROVE THE SILVER OAK SUBDIVISION FINAL DEVELOPMENT 

PLAN AND PLAT; AND ISSUE THE FINAL DEVELOPMENT ORDER. 
  
SUMMARY: 
 
OWNER:   Development Solutions SH, LLC. 
 
APPLICANT:   Surrey Homes 
 
ENGINEER:   Poulos & Bennet, LLC c/o Mark Stehli, P.E. 
  
LOCATION:   North of East Keene Road and west of Sheeler Avenue 
 
PARCEL ID NUMBERS: 22-21-28-0000-00-078; -079, -081, -082, -105, -108, -109, -114, -117, -122 
 
FUTURE LAND USE: Residential High (0 – 15 du/ac) 
 
ZONING:   R-3 (Residential) 
 
OVERLAY:   Small Lot Overlay 
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT: 182 Single Family Residential Lots, Clubhouse and Community Swimming 

Pool 
 
TRACT SIZE:   50.83 +/- acres 
  
FUNDING SOURCE:  Not Applicable. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

 
98



CITY COUNCIL – MAY 4, 2016 
SILVER OAK SUBDIVISION – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN/PLAT 
PAGE 2 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (County) Rural A-1  SFR 

North (City) Agricultural AG Active Horticultural Nursery 

East (City) Residential Low Density R-1A/R-2 Cobblefield Single-Family Residential Community 

South (City) Agricultural AG Foliage Nursery 

South (County) 
Rural Settlement and 

Agricultural 
A-1/A-2 

Manufactured homes; Apopka Expressway  

(S.R. 414) toll entrance; horticultural nursery 

West (City) Agricultural AG Horticultural nursery 

 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  The Silver Oaks Subdivision Final Development Plan proposes 182 single 

family residential units, clubhouse and community swimming pool.  The Silver Oaks Subdivision is located 

within a Small Lot Overlay District which will consist of 40, 50 and 70 feet wide lots with a minimum lot 

size of 4600 S.F. and a minimum living area of 1500 S.F.  All 40 foot wide lots have access via a rear-loaded 

garage from an alley owned and maintained by the homeowners association. All 50 foot and 70 foot wide 

lots have front entry garages.  Development standards for the subdivision are based on the approved Silver 

Oak Master Plan and the Land Development Code. 

 

Access:  Ingress/egress for the development will occur from internal public roads connecting at two 

locations -- Sheeler Avenue and East Keene Road.  All subdivision roads are publicly owned and 

maintained.  All alleyways are owned and maintained by the homeowners association. 

 

Stormwater:  The stormwater management system includes on-site retention areas designed to meet the 

City’s Land Development Code requirements. 

 

School Capacity Report:   A School Mitigation Agreement is under review by Orange County Public 

Schools.  The location is served by the following schools: Lakeville Elementary, Piedmont Lakes Middle 

School, and Wekiva High School.  No plat shall be recorded for the subject property until the developer has 

obtained a school concurrency mitigation agreement and School Capacity Enhancement Agreement from 

OCPS. 

   

Recreation Space:  The developer is providing a total of 6.08 acres of passive and active recreational areas 

which includes a twenty-five hundred (2500) square foot clubhouse, tot lot, dog park, community swimming 

pool, and common open space areas. 

 

Environmental:  A habitat management plan was submitted by the applicant.  Based on the results of this 

study, the developer must obtain approval from the Florida Fish and Wildlife Commission prior to 

commencing any site construction activity. 

 

Orange County Notification:  The JPA requires the City to notify the County any public hearing or 

advisory board consideration of a Subdivision Plan that is adjacent to Unincorporated Orange County.  The 

County was notified. 

  

99



CITY COUNCIL – MAY 4, 2016 
SILVER OAK SUBDIVISION – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN/PLAT 
PAGE 3 

 

Buffer/Tree Program:  The applicant has provided a detailed landscape and irrigation plan for the 

property.  The planting materials and irrigation system design are consistent with the water-efficient 

landscape standards set forth in Ordinance No. 2069.  A tree survey and mitigation plan is included with 

the final development plan. The developer is required to pay tree mitigation fee of $34,140 into the tree 

bank fund. 

 

The following is a summary of the tree replacement program for this project: 

 

Total inches on-site:     6510 

Total number of specimen trees:     34 

Total inches removed:    5742 

Total inches retained:      768 

Total specimen inches retained:     42 

Total inches required:    5742 

Total inches replaced:    2328 

Total inches post development: 2328 

Tree Inches to be mitigated:  3414 

 

WAIVER REQUESTS:  

 

1) Waiver Request #1: The applicant is requesting a waiver from LDC 6.02.07(8) b which requires “The 

width of curb and gutter shall be a minimum of 24 inches and shall be Florida state DOT type "F" curb 

and gutter. Simple vertical curbing and Miami curb are prohibited. FDOT type mountable median curb 

may be used around median dividers on the high side of pavement. All curbing designed to handle water 

shall incorporate an approved gutter design. There shall be a stabilized subgrade beneath all curbs and 

one foot beyond the back of curb.”  

 

Request:  The applicant is proposing install “Miami Curb” in the alleys only. 

 

Justification:  Provides mountable curb to support a 22’ drivable surface in conjunction with waiver #2. 

 

DRC recommendation- DRC supports the proposed waiver request. 

 

2) Waiver Request #2. The applicant is requesting a waiver from LDC 6.02.07 minimum street design and 

construction standards. 

 

Request: The applicant is proposing a twenty-two (22) feet wide drivable surface within the alleys only. 

 

Justification: Traditional New Development (TND) guidelines specify 15-foot paved surfaces within a 

20-foot alley tract to service between 300-600 average daily trips (ADT).  The Silver Oak two-way 

alleys serve a maximum of 14 lots 140 (ADT) and are not subject to pass through traffic.  The proposed 

alley provides 22 feet of paved surface which is in excess of the TND design guidelines. Additionally, 

the peak traffic volumes occur in the AM and PM which does not coincide with the time of garbage 

pick-up service. 

 

DRC recommendation - DRC supports the proposed waiver request. 

 100



CITY COUNCIL – MAY 4, 2016 
SILVER OAK SUBDIVISION – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN/PLAT 
PAGE 4 

 

 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
Planning Commission – April 12, 2016, 5:30 p.m. 
City Council – May 4, 2016, 1:30 p.m. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 
The Development Review Committee finds the Silver Oaks Subdivision Final Development Plan and Plat 
to be consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, Land Development Code, and the approved Silver Oak 
Master Plan and recommends the approval of the Silver Oaks Subdivision- Final Development Plan and to 
approve waiver requests, subject to submittal of a School Mitigation Agreement and School Capacity 
Enhancement Agreement with Orange County School Board. 
 

The Planning Commission, at its meeting on April 12, 2016, found the Silver Oak Subdivision Final 
Development Plan and Plat to be consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, Land Development Code, and 
the approved Silver Oak Master Plan; and recommended approval (5-0) of the Silver Oaks Subdivision 
Final Development Plan and Plat and waiver requests, subject to submittal of a School Mitigation 
Agreement with Orange County School Board, for the property owned by Development Solutions SH, LLC 
and located north of East Keene Road, west of Sheeler Avenue.    
 
City Council:  Approval of the Silver Oaks Subdivision- Final Development Plan and Plat and waiver 
requests with the condition that a plat shall not be recorded until all School Mitigation Agreements have 
been approved by the Orange County School Board. 
 
Approve the Final Development Plan/Plat and issue the Final Development Order for Silver Oaks 
Subdivision. 
 
Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 

into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

  

101



CITY COUNCIL – MAY 4, 2016 
SILVER OAK SUBDIVISION – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN/PLAT 
PAGE 5 

 

Silver Oak Subdivision 
50.83 +/- Acres 

Proposed: 182 units 
Parcel ID #s: 22-21-28-0000-00-078, 22-21-28-0000-00-079, 22-21-28-0000-00-081, 

22-21-28-0000-00-082, 22-21-28-0000-00-105, 22-21-28-0000-00-108, 
22-21-28-0000-00-109, 22-21-28-0000-00-114, 22-21-28-0000-00-117  
and 22-21-28-0000-00-122 

 

VICINITY MAP  

 

 

    

 
102



CITY COUNCIL – MAY 4, 2016 
SILVER OAK SUBDIVISION – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN/PLAT 
PAGE 6 

 

 

 

 

 

AERIAL MAP 

 

 

 
 

103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. Approve the appointment of Kerry Luellen to the Police Officers' Retirement System Board of Trustees. 
  

129



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

  X   CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: May 4, 2016 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:  Mayor Kilsheimer 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS: Board Appointment 

Form, Resume 

       OTHER:  
  

 

SUBJECT: APPROVE APPOINTMENT OF KERRY LUELLEN TO THE POLICE OFFICERS’ 

RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES. 

 

REQUEST: APPROVE APPOINTMENT OF KERRY LUELLEN TO THE POLICE OFFICERS’ 

RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES FOR TWO (2) YEAR TERM 

ENDING FEBRUARY 19, 2018. 
  
SUMMARY:  
 

Mayor Kilsheimer recommends appointment of Kerry Luellen, legal resident and financial advisor, to the 

Police Officers’ Retirement System Board of Trustees for the two-year term ending February 19, 2018. 
  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

N/A    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Appoint Kerry Luellen to Police Officers’ Retirement System Board of Trustees for the two-year term 

ending February 19, 2018. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

130



 

 

131



 

132



 

 

133



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

2. Approve the appointment of Randall G. West to the Police Officers' Retirement System Board of Trustees. 
  

134



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

  X   CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: May 4, 2016 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:  Mayor Kilsheimer 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS: Board Appointment 

Form, Résumé 

       OTHER:  
  

 

SUBJECT: APPOINT RANDALL G. WEST TO THE POLICE OFFICERS’ RETIREMENT 

SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES. 

 

REQUEST: APPOINT RANDALL G. WEST TO THE POLICE OFFICERS’ RETIREMENT 

SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES FOR TWO (2) YEAR TERM ENDING 

FEBRUARY 19, 2018. 
  
SUMMARY: 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer recommends appointment of Randall G. West, legal resident and investment portfolio 

consultant, to the Police Officers’ Retirement System Board of Trustees for the two-year term ending 

February 19, 2018. 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

N/A    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Appoint Randall G. West to the Police Officers’ Retirement System Board of Trustees for the two-year 

term ending February 19, 2018. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

135



136



137



138



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

3. Approve the reappointment of Todd Bengston to the Firefighters' Retirement System Board of Trustees. 
  

139



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

  X   CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: May 4, 2016 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:  Mayor Kilsheimer 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS: None 

       OTHER:  
  

 

SUBJECT: APPROVE REAPPOINTMENT OF TODD BENGSTON TO THE FIREFIGHTERS’ 

RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES.  

 

REQUEST: APPROVE REAPPOINTMENT OF TODD BENGSTON TO THE FIREFIGHTERS’ 

RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES FOR TWO (2) YEAR TERM 

ENDING FEBRUARY 19, 2018. 
  
SUMMARY:  

 

Todd Bengston, legal Apopka resident and District Fire Chief, was first recommended for appointment to 

the Firefighters’ Retirement System Board of Trustees on February 19, 2014, by then-Mayor John Land.  

Mayor Kilsheimer recommends reappointment of Todd Bengston to the Firefighters’ Retirement System 

Board of Trustees for the two-year term ending February 19, 2018. 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

N/A    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Reappoint Todd Bengston to Firefighters’ Retirement System Board of Trustees for the two-year term 

ending February 19, 2018. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

140



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

4. Approve the reappointment of Mayor Kilsheimer to the Firefighters' Retirement System Board of Trustees. 
  

141



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

  X   CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: May 4, 2016 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:  Mayor Kilsheimer 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:  

       OTHER:  
  

 

SUBJECT: APPROVE REAPPOINTMENT OF MAYOR KILSHEIMER TO THE 

FIREFIGHTERS’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES. 

 

REQUEST: APPROVE REAPPOINTMENT OF MAYOR KILSHEIMER TO THE 

FIREFIGHTERS’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES FOR TWO (2) 

YEAR TERM ENDING FEBRUARY 19, 2018. 
  
SUMMARY:  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer, legal Apopka resident, was first recommended for appointment to the Firefighters’ 

Retirement System Board of Trustees on February 2, 2015, to serve out the remaining term of Mayor John 

Land.  Mayor Kilsheimer recommends his reappointment to the Firefighters’ Retirement System Board of 

Trustees for the two-year term ending February 19, 2018. 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

N/A    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Reappoint Mayor Kilsheimer to Firefighters’ Retirement System Board of Trustees for the two-year term 

ending February 19, 2018. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

142



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. Thank you letter to the City of Apopka from the Harbor House of Central Florida. 
  

143



144


	Top
	1. 05-04-16 - CC - APPROVAL OF MINUTES - Council 4-20-16
	04-20-16 draft.pdf

	1. 05-04-16 - CC - Proclamations - Teacher Appreciation Week Proclamation
	2. 05-04-16 - CC - Proclamations - National Bike to School Day
	3. 05-04-16 - CC - Proclamations - National Police Week Proclamation
	1. 05-04-16 - CC - Presentation - Senator Thompson Legislative Updates
	2. 05-04-16 - CC - Presentation - Recreation Program &amp; Rental Fees
	David Burgoon -  Presentation on Recreation Program &amp; Rental Fees.pdf
	Recreation Fees  EXCEL(2).pdf
	Apopka Rec  PPT revised 4-28-16.pdf

	3. 05-04-16 - CC - Presentations - Splash Pad
	Glenn - Splash Pad Staff Report.pdf
	Glenn - Splash Pad Pictures.pdf

	1. 05-04-16 - CC - Consent Agenda - RFQ 2016-06
	RFQ 2016-06.docx
	RFQ 2016 Ranking.docx

	2. 05-04-16 - CC - Consent Agenda (Action Item) - Authorize Issuance of Vehicle for Hire - T-Max Transportation, Maxo Angervil
	1 T-Max Transportation Services LLC Vehicle for Hire - CC - 05-04-16.pdf
	2 T-Max Transportation Services LLC Vehicle for Hire App - CC - 05-04-16.pdf

	3. 05-04-16 - CC - Consent Agenda (Action Item) - Authorize Issuance of Vehicle For Hire - U-First Transportation, Ronald Joseph
	1 U-First Transportation Vehicle for Hire - CC - 05-04-16.pdf
	2 U-First Transportation Vehicle for Hire App.pdf

	4. 05-04-16 - CC - Consent Agenda (Action Item) - Capital Facility Fees Payment Agreement
	1 Ambergate Townhomes Capital Facility Agree grnsht.pdf
	2 Ambergate Townhomes Capital Facility Fees Payment Agreement.pdf

	5. 05-04-16 - CC - Consent Agenda - Northwest: Supervisor of Elections Polling Location
	Polling Location.pdf
	PP  Availability  Form Revised 4-28-16.pdf
	PP Contract 2016 tax supported Revised #2.pdf

	1. 05-04-16 - CC - Ordinances - 2nd Rd - Ord. #2493 - Change of Zoning - Quasi-Judicial
	1 Little Brownie Properties, Inc - 532 E 13th St -  ZON - CC 05-04-16 2nd Rd.pdf
	2 Ord 2493 - Little Brownie Prop Inc - 532 E 13th St  - ZON.pdf

	2. 05-04-16 - CC - Ordinances - 2nd Rd - Ord. #2494 - Annexation
	1 Ord 2494 - SBKP, LLC 2nd Rd.pdf
	2 2016 Annexation Cycle 2- Spreadsheet.pdf
	3 Ord 2494 - SBKP, LLC.pdf

	3. 05-04-16 - CC - Ordinances - 2nd Rd - Ord. #2495 - Annexation
	1 Ord 2495 - Jack-Joyce Cravey 2nd Rd.pdf
	2 2016 Annexation Cycle 2- Spreadsheet.pdf
	3 Ord 2495 - Cravey.pdf

	1. 05-04-16 - CC - Site Plan - Final Development Plan &amp; Plat - Silver Oak - Quasi-Judicial
	1 Silver Oak - FDP - CC 05-4-16.pdf
	2 Silver Oak -Site Plan.pdf
	3 Silver Oak Landscape Plans.pdf
	4 Silver Oak- Design Standards.pdf
	5 Silver Oak Hardscape Plans.pdf
	6 Home Elevations.pdf
	7 Typical Lot - Layout.pdf
	8 Silver Oak -Plat.pdf

	2. Council
	3. Public 
	1. 05-04-16 - CC - Mayor&apos;s Report - PD Pension Board Appointment-Kerry Luellen
	Mayor -  Confirm Appointment of Kerry Luellen to PD Pension Board.pdf
	Mayor - Kerry Luellen App &amp; Resume.pdf

	2. 05-04-16 - CC - Mayor&apos;s Report - PD Pension Board Appointment-Randall G. West
	Agenda - 2016-05-04 CC Confirm Appointment of Randall G. West to PD Pension Board.pdf
	Randall G. West Board Appointment Form and Resume.pdf

	3. 05-04-16 - CC - Mayor&apos;s Report - FD Pension Board Appointment-Todd Bengston
	Agenda - 2016-04-20 CC Confirm Appointment of Todd Bengston to FF Pension Board.pdf

	4. 05-04-16 - CC - Mayor&apos;s Report - FD Pension Board Appointment-Mayor Kilsheimer
	Agenda - 2016-04-20 CC Confirm Appointment of Mayor Kilsheimer to FF Pension Board.pdf

	1. 05-04-16 - CC - Not Requiring Action - Harbor House
	Harbor House Letter.pdf

	Bottom

